
September 2nd, 2025 
      Regular Meeting 

1 

 

 The Deuel County Commissioners met in regular session on September 2nd, 2025, 
at 9:00 AM in the Commission Room of the Courthouse with Chairman Jay Grabow 
presiding. Those present were Commissioners Jay Grabow, Steve Rhody, Scott Fieber, 
Harry Mewherter and Judith Homan. Also present was Auditor Courtney Parker. The 
meeting began with prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance. 1) Fieber moved, seconded by 
Rhody to approve the agenda as presented Executive Session Legal Counsel and a Banner 
Contract. All voted yes and the motion carried. 2) Homan moved, seconded by Mewherter 
to approve the August Minutes. All voted yes and the motion carried.  

Appointments 
Item #1 Swearing in Tyler Holm as Deputy 

Director Meguire swore in deputy, Tyler Holm, as he is now certified and has been 
working for a year.  
Item #2 at 9:00 AM Public Hearing for 5-Year Road and Bridge Plan 
 Discussion was had on the 5-year road and bridge plan. Marlo Mundahl had 
concern about the bridges next to his house and if Invenergy would be using them. Molly 
Malone from Invenergy confirmed they would not be using them and that she has rerouted 
traffic around them. In 2027 is when the bridges next to Mundahl would be replaced. 
Broksieck stated Banner and the State has posted a weight limit at which it is safe to travel 
over the bridges. Preliminary engineering was awarded to the 186th bridge over Cobb 
Creek.  
Item #3 Highway Superintendent Jamie Broksieck  

Broksieck explained the detailed rodeo expenses. The average went down as 
Broksieck took out graveling expenses. The average went down from originally stated 
27,880.09 to 18,262.07. He stated since the road is the county’s we should not include 
gravel expenses for the rodeo association. There was discussion on a Haul Road 
Agreement. Chris Uckert said the Crystal Springs Rodeo is the biggest event in the county. 
He stated the minutes discussing the rodeo expenses didn’t look good and felt like the 
association was getting trashed. Uckert explained the number of campers are way down 
from over 5000 initially to 1000-1200. The statements about the rodeo keeping people from 
town is untrue because there’s less people that camp, increasing more daily admission. 
Uckert also asked where do you draw the line on a haul road agreements for the farmers or 
anyone else. They take many loaded trucks up and down that same road. The commission 
stated the taxpayers of Deuel County are paying for the added rodeo expenses for a private 
organization. Commission has always been worried about the amount of money that is put 
towards the rodeo. Dust control is put down because the county can’t keep up with 
watering. Uckert mentioned the association gives the county highway shop employees 
tickets to the rodeo as a ‘thank you’. Homan explained that she was a business owner a 
long time ago, but during that time she could have closed her business because no one 
stopped to go out to eat during the rodeo week. Cody Krause asked the commissioners how 
many businesses in Clear Lake are open for dinner and supper on a normal basis. Krause 
continued that it was heart breaking to the rodeo association to read the meeting minutes. 
Grabow stated when the commission started the conversation about the rodeo expenses, 
the commission thought they were a 501(3)C non-profit organization but they are actually a 
private organization. Grabow stated we are not trashing the rodeo but trying to figure out the 
best way to go about spending taxpayer money. Uckert asked if the malt beverage license is 
being questioned? Grabow stated they just wanted the rodeo to come in and talk with the 
commission, which they are doing at this time. There needs to be more discussion on what 



September 2nd, 2025 
      Regular Meeting 

2 

 

will solve the problem but Krause and Uckert will talk with the rest of the rodeo association 
during their meeting. Discussion will continue at a later date.  

Banner Contract for Bridge 20-107-190 by Robb Krause and Neal Ruhd in the 
amount of $44,600. Broksieck stated it is a wooden bridge and the pillars are starting to rot. 
If we do the preliminary engineering it would boost us 6 to 7 points making it close to 50 
total points which would increase the bridge to qualify for BIG funding. 3) Homan moved, 
seconded by Rhody to do the preliminary engineering with Banner costing $44,600. All 
voted yes and the motion carried.  

4) Mewherter moved, seconded by Fieber to approved Sir Lines-A-Lot to stripe on 38 
miles of fresh chip sealing resulting in $69,950. All voted yes and the motion carried. 
Item #4 at 9:30 AM Budget Hearing 

Discussion was open to the public on the 2026 Budget. No one from the public was 
present.  
Item #5 Wildrose Dairy  

Wildrose Dairy representative Jogchum Andringa asked about the grant that gives 
the 80%/20% split of local funding. He stated he wasn’t aware of the grant when he started 
his program. Grabow requested more information on paper so he can present to the 
commission. Ben Stout said it is hard to go back and reallocate the funds. It was back in 
2021 when he did the expansion. He asked the county to fix a county road where the 
Plainview Dairy project is a sales tax reimbursement.   
Item #6 David Hentges 

Discussion was held on giving a refund to David Hentges. The board approved an 
abatement but it does not qualify as an abatement. Hentges explained the process on 
Shady Beach and that he needed to quit claim deed the 25 feet more he was assessed for 
to his neighbor. He accepted some guilt as he didn’t pay attention when he got his notices 
in the mail. There was a whole mess and quite a few adjustments that were made on shady 
beach. Hentges didn’t pay attention to the amount of footage on his assessments. Had to 
hire an attorney. Grabow explained all the other property owners did it. 5) Fieber moved, 
seconded by Rhody to refund half of the amount back to Hengtes. Homan- nay, Mewherter- 
nay, Fieber- yay, Rhody- yay, Grabow- yay, motion carried.  
Item #7 Blom Township 

Blom Township representatives presented a video on a bad road in their township. 
Discussion was had on the 65% of the grant money the county receives from the Plainview 
Dairy project that will go to roads in that township. Moore presented some information on 
the Plainview Dairy grant that stated once the operation is operational then it would be six 
months before the money is distributed. Grabow asked where the haul road agreement was 
at. He advised to try and negotiate whatever you can get for the township. Grabow asked 
what they are trying to get in the haul road agreement that is not currently in it. Grabow 
understands not wanting the manure line in the approaches but has to be better than 
trucking it up and down the road. Grabow advised to figure out a solution. Lenning wanted 
to know when the money should be here at county and Grabow stated we need to do some 
research to know when the funds are coming in order to give some out. A copy of the 
engineering contract given to Wildrose should be given to Plainview. Plainview gave a 
contract that is completely different to the township. Grabow will call Knevelbaard to get 
things figured out.  
Item #8 at 10:31 AM Executive Session Pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2(1) Personnel Matters & 
SDCL 1-25-2(4) Contractual Matters  



September 2nd, 2025 
      Regular Meeting 

3 

 

6) Rhody moved, seconded by Fieber to move into Executive Session Pursuant to 
SDCL 1-25-2(1) Personnel Matters first and then SDCL 1-25-2(4) Contractual Matters. All 
voted yes and the motion carried. Commission moved into Contractual Matters at 10:40 
AM. Chairman Grabow declared the Commissioners out of Executive Session at 10:49 AM.  

New Business 
A moratorium on wind tower building permits until the wind tower ordinance is 

completed was discussed. First part that was discussed is if the land owners get to decide 
where the wind tower can go? Malone, Invenergy Representative, stated the guidelines they 
have to follow for birds, bats, shadow, wind, etc. is very strict so there’s not a lot of wiggle 
room. The CUP has a map of where the towers are going to go which would include shadow 
flicker, setbacks, sound, etc. Zoning rules and regulations are to protect the people of 
Deuel County. Zoning level discussion due to the previous wind tower land owners with 
issues from previous wind tower projects such as tile not being fixed or black dirt not being 
put back. Start date was going to be October however Invenergy still doesn’t have an inter 
connection agreement. Grabow asked Malone how do we prevent or fix the issues for the 
land owners? Malone explained there are performance bonds that should be encouraged to 
use. Jodi Theisen, Zoning Officer, suggested an affidavit at the beginning of construction 
with the wind tower might help. Homan stated the South Wind Project is approved at the 
PUC and we cannot fix the ordinances now. She stated going forward yes there should be 
some things fixed in our wind ordinances. Evenson stated the performance bond would be 
a good fix for the past complaints. They would go to the PUC, would listen to their problems 
and decide the fix. Evenson also said they can hire a lawyer and go after Invenergy. Evenson 
will figure out if the performance bond is possible for the next meeting on September 16th.  

SotaSoDak representative Gary Hudiburgh explained Invenergy is helping get 
younger kids jobs whether it is with Invenergy or contractors for Invenergy projects. He just 
wanted to voice his opinion on not putting on a moratorium.  

Approval of Warrants 
7) Homan moved, seconded by Fieber to pay all warrants. All voted yes and motion 

carried.  
Warrants: A&B BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 173.88 SUPPLIES, AT&T MOBILITY 332.80 UTILITIES, 
AVERA OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE 113.10 DRUG TESTS, CARTNEY BEARING & SUPPLY CO 
97.24 REPAIR, CINTAS CORP 115.31 RUG RENTALS, CLEAR LAKE BUILDING CENTER 
285.21 SUPPLIES, CITY OF CLEAR LAKE 283.04 UTILITIES, TWOTREES TECHNOLOGIES 
96.55 REPAIR, DAKOTA PORTABLE TOILETS, INC 225.00 TOILET RENTAL, DSC 
COMMUNICATIONS 637.75 PROF SERVICE, FLEETPRIDE 40.19 REPAIR, HILLYARD/SIOUX 
FALLS 290.57 SUPPLIES, JEBRO INC 210690.43 ROAD OIL SUPPLIES, JOHN DEERE 
FINANCIAL 373.14 REPAIR, DEB LESSMAN 45.62 SUPPLY REIMB., M & T FIRE AND SAFETY 
51.09 MINOR EQUIP FREIGHT, MCLEOD'S 229.10 TAX CARDS, MENARDS 85.77 SUPPLIES, 
ONLINE STORES PA LLC 6138.31 FLAG POLES, OFFICE PEEPS INC 411.60 SUPPLIES, 
OTTERTAIL POWER CO 63.07 UTILITIES, POWERPLAN OIB 1504.14 REPAIR, RICHARDSON, 
WYLY, WISE, 4849.00 PROF. SERVICE, SD DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 828.68 FUEL, 
TRUENORTH STEEL INC 1920.00 CULVERTS & BANDS, VANDER HAAGS INC. 122.00 
REPAIR 

August Payroll  
Commissioners $10647.38, Election $134.25, Auditor’s Office $12511.61, Treasurer’s 

Office $12437.49, State’s Attorney’s Office $8639.90, General Government Building 
$7615.86, Director of Equalization Office $18935.68, Register of Deeds Office $9892.78, 



September 2nd, 2025 
      Regular Meeting 

4 

 

Veteran Service Officer $3001.55, GIS $749.03, Sheriff’s Dept. $43886.38, County Assist 
$402.64, 4-H $2226.24, Extension Office $4613.10, Weed & Pest $3803.04, Planning & 

Zoning $5756.26, Road & Bridge $85456.29, Civil Defense $428.08 
Public Comment 

There was no public comment.  
Adjournment 

There being no further business 8) Mewherter moved, seconded by Grabow to 
adjourn. All voted yes and the motion carried.  
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________            ________________________________  
Courtney Parker, Auditor          Jay Grabow, Chairman 
Published one time at the approximate cost of              


